

# REVIEW

HERITAGE INTELLIGENCE (WA)
LAURA GRAY JP M.ICOMOS B.ARCH







## **Contents**

Executive summary	2
1.0 Heritage	7
2.0 Process	
3.0 Documentary research	
4.0 Criteria for significance	
5.0 Levels of significance	10
6.0 Places	
7.0 Grades	15
8.0 Heritage List	
9.0 Grade B- Places	
10.0 Grade C Places	
11.0 Aboriginal Heritage	
12.0 Conclusion	22
13.0 References	
14.0 Appendices	





## **Executive summary**

The review of the Municipal Inventory of Heritage Places is a requirement of the *Heritage Act (1990)*. The assessment criteria detailed in the State Heritage Office's guidelines entitled *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas* (Appendix 1) as recommended in *State Planning Policy 3.5 Historic Heritage Conservation*, has been the primary guiding document for the Heritage Inventory review for the Shire of Goomalling.

The review references the original 1997 Municipal Inventory of Heritage Places. There was no historical overview within the original document, and the compilation of an historical overview is not in the scope of this review.

Community consultation is an essential element of the review process. Attempts to garner community support were relatively unsuccessful although there was interest from Councillors and the Historical Society.

The historical information associated with each place record has been identified, extracted, and acknowledged from the published history of Goomalling: Sewell, B. *Goomalling-A Backward Glance-A History of the District.* 

The draft version of the Heritage Inventory Review was presented to Shire Council as a work in progress to provide a foundation from which to garner community comment in order to finalise the review.

Each place and site in the 1997 inventory has been reviewed, including site photographs of most places, excluding places that are not visible from the public space and require entry to private property.

The 1997 Municipal Inventory of Heritage Places listed the following 22 places including sites:

1	Goomalling Railway Station (fmr)
2	Goomalling District Hospital
3	Goomalling Tavern (Hotel)
4	Goomalling Farmers Club
5	Senior Citizens Hall (fmr Masonic Lodge)
6	Goomalling War Memorial Hall
7	Goomalling Post Office
8	Union Bank and Quarters (fmr)
9	National Bank (fmr) Road Board Office (fmr)
10	Bank of NSW (fmr) Bendigo Bank cnr Railway Tce & Forrest St
11	Headmaster's residence (fmr) [Goomalling Historical Society]



## **REVIEW 2018**

12	Konnongorring School (fmr) [Goomalling Museum]
13	Agricultural Hall, Jennacubbine
14	Jennacubbine Tavern
15	St Isidore's Catholic Church, Jennacubbine
16	Konnongorring Hall
17	St Michael the Archangel Church (Catholic), Konnongorring
18	St Luke's Hall, Mumberkine
19	Slater Homestead
20	Pear Tree Well SITE
21	Oak Park picnic Area and wetlands SITE
nn	Walyormouring School SITE

The following 56 recommended places are either of historical importance or places that demonstrate the ongoing development in the Shire of Goomalling area. Further information will be required for some places to identify the sites and/or provide substantiation for their significance;

W.Bottle's residence (fmr)	7 Forrest Street
W.Bottle's Shop (fmr)	9 Forrest Street
Wilkin's Dining Room & Hostel (fmr)	12 Forrest Street
St John Ambulance	61 Forrest Street
CWA original SITE & Flour Mill SITE	6 Forward Street
Goomalling Convent SITE	Forward Street
Sacred Heart Catholic School	20 Hoddy Street

Goomalling District High School 65 Hoddy Street (R29843)

Cordial factory SITE 1 Lockyer Street
Original hospital SITE 12 Lockyer Street

Recreation reserve 47 Lockyer Street (R9069)
Army Ordnance SITE Quinlan Street (east end)

Police Station, Courthouse & lock-up 14 Quinlan Street

Uniting Church 17 Quinlan Street (R10759)

Catholic Presbytery 35 Quinlan Street

Sacred Heart Catholic Church 37 Quinlan Street cnr Hoddy (R10585) (L554/42)

Goomalling Shire Office 32 Quinlan Street cnr Hoddy

## **REVIEW 2018**



Railway turntable SITE Railway Tce; Main St; Throssell St Wigmores (fmr) 1 Railway Terrace cnr Throssell

Goomalling Gazette building (fmr)

9 Railway Terrace

Eaton's Café & grocery (fmr)

11 Railway Terrace

Eaton's Garage (fmr)

13 Railway Terrace

Kingston's Grocery Store (fmr)

17 Railway Terrace

RB Motors

25 Railway Terrace

Butcher's (fmr)

29 Railway Terrace

Goomalling Co-op (fmr) 37-39 Railway Terrace

CWA, Infant Health Clinic & Anstey Park 43 Railway Terrace (R8800)

Royals Store (fmr) SITE 51-53 Railway Terrace
R & I Bank 55 Railway Terrace
Billiard hall SITE 67 Railway Terrace
Bakery (fmr) 71 Railway Terrace
Auto Electricians 2 Throssell Street

St Paul's Anglican Church 7 Throssell Street (R9387) (L342/42)

War Memorial Swimming Pool 22 Throssell Street (R24743)

Goomalling State School SITE 1906-1955 22-46 Throssell Street (R24743 & 8918)

Goomalling State School SITE 1955-1973 16 Williams Street (R8918)

Old Native (Aboriginal) Reserve SITE Goomalling-Calingiri Road

CBH Wheat bins Railway Terrace (SW) (R38174)

Chatham's Farm & Graves Eaton Street

Quarry Pear Tree Drive (NW)

Goomalling Cemetery Cemetery Road
Ruel's boarding house (fmr) SITE 32 Quinlan Street

Sunlight Hospital SITE Northam-Pithara Road (SE of Townsite)

Goomalling Agricultural Hall SITE Silver Hills

Jennacubbine CWA

Jennacubbine War Memorial
Jennacubbine Water tank stand

Jurokine Coach House (fmr) Goomalling-Toodyay Road

**REVIEW 2018** 



Mumberkine homestead ruins

Wongamine Hall ruins

Patricia Homestead Wongamine Botherling Homestead Botherling

Anglican and Uniting Church Northam-Pithara Road, Konnongorring

Konnongorring Well

School sites Throughout Shire area
Railway sidings Throughout Shire area
Wells Throughout Shire area

A number of place names have been amended as part of the review, to revert to original place names where possible, with the abbreviation (fmr) after the name, informing that it was a former name.

In the course of extracting information about each place, a number of other queries arose as to whether the places still exist or are of significance to the community for consideration; some of those questions remain unanswered. Those places include; railway siding sites, the clay pits, Jaff's house (cnr Quinlan & James), 2 cottages in Throssel Street, Cecil Royal's "Navenby", 1968 kindergarten, Konnongorring CWA, 5 railway cottages at Jennacubbine, and various homesteads that are documented in the Shire's history publication, to name a few.

In the context of the entirety of the Shire of Goomalling, gradings (management categories) have also been reviewed. Gradings are critical to providing some guidance to the owners, managers and the Shire of Goomalling, to respond appropriately to each heritage place. Based on the assessed values, gradings have been determined, consistent with the assessed level of significance for each place.

The State Heritage Office's guidelines (Appendix 2) outline levels of significance and 'desired outcomes' in deference to gradings to ensure all parties have a clear expectation associated with the assessed level of significance. Therefore, grading have been developed and implications detailed to ensure clear outcomes.

Importantly, the highest gradings: A and B are usually recommended to form the local governments' 'Heritage List' to provide formal provisions of the Town Planning Scheme, including the Heritage Areas, and C graded places have no statutory protection or management control, although are recommended for retention and/or interpretation as appropriate.

The Shire Council of Goomalling preferred that the Heritage List be comprised of Grade A places and only Shire owned Grade B places due to community consultation and objections to Grade B listings. Accordingly, those places have been recorded as B- in recognition of their level of heritage significance, but will afford the same level of no constraints as a Grade C places in deference to the community





concerns. Therefore, those Grade B- places, although being assessed of greater cultural heritage significance than Grade C places, will have the same recommended outcome; retention and/or interpretation as appropriate, with no relevance to the provisions of the Town Planning Scheme. The retained Grade B places that form part of the Heritage List will be identified as Grade B+ places.

In retaining the Grade B in two categories; Grade B+ Heritage List; Grade B- no constraints pre Grade C, the review is consistent with the heritage significance assessment processes and outcomes as required of an inventory review.

Recognised sites are identified within the definition of a 'place'. As a consequence, sites are included throughout the document.

Grade A and specific Grade B+ places form the Shire of Goomalling's Heritage List. The 2 Grade A places are already entered in the State Heritage Office's Register of Heritage Places.

There are no recommendations for any further Grade A places.

Grade B- places are recognised as having considerable significance to Shire of Goomalling but are not included in the Heritage List as instructed by Shire Council.

The 2018 review of the Shire of Goomalling's Heritage Inventory further reiterates the significance of the rich heritage and history of the Goomalling town and region, and provides strategic guidance to conserve those places assessed as having a high level of cultural significance.





### 1.0 Heritage

Heritage means different things to different people, and can be quite subjective. However, objective consideration has been provided through the State Heritage Office guidelines: *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas* (Appendix 2) that provide a consistency of assessment and comparative significance both within the local government area and to other places throughout the state.

#### 2.0 Process

The process is relatively tried and true.

A desktop review of the existing (1997) heritage inventory provides a basic view of overview with particular regard to the management categories (Grades) with consideration of the Heritage List inclusion.

It's a strong recommendation that only the Heritage List is appended to the Town Planning Scheme (not the entire Inventory).

Information and photographs (where possible) recorded the current condition and integrity of each place.

Statements of Significance for each place were reassessed against the *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas*.

Draft review report was prepared for Council consideration and was further amended as required, to include Grade A and only Grade B+ places (not in private ownership), in the Heritage List.

Grade B- places, at Shire Council directive are NOT included in the Heritage List.

Council's consideration and comments were attentioned, the document amended as required, in preparation for the report to be endorsed by Council.

The Heritage Inventory Review 2018 is a dynamic document with an electronic version to manage the Shire of Goomalling's Heritage Inventory in-house for the future.

#### 3.0 Documentary research

The Shire of Goomalling's history is documented in the Shire's historical publication: Sewell, B. Goomalling-A Backward Glance-A History of the District.

All research for the place records was undertaken with reference to that publication, extracted and acknowledged accordingly.





#### 4.0 Criteria for significance

Every place either previously listed or proposed for inclusion in the Shire of Goomalling's Heritage Inventory Review 2017, has been assessed within the State Heritage Office's guidelines; *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas* (Appendix 2). The four criteria for the assessment are summarised hereunder:

#### Assessment of significance

#### Aesthetic value\*

Criterion 1 It is significant in exhibiting particular aesthetic characteristic.

#### Historic value

Criterion 2 It is significant in the evolution or pattern of the history of the local district.

#### Research value

Criterion 3A: It has demonstrable potential to yield information that will contribute to an understanding of the natural or cultural history of the local district.

Criterion 3B: It is significant in demonstrating a high degree of technical innovation or achievement.

#### Social value

Criterion 4 It is significant through association with a community or cultural group in Western Australia for social, cultural, education or spiritual reasons.

#### Degree of significance

#### Rarity

Criterion 5 It demonstrates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of the cultural heritage of the local district.

#### Representativeness

Criterion 6 It is significant in demonstrating the characteristics of a class of cultural places or environments in the local district.

For consistency, all references to architectural style are taken from Apperly, R., Irving, R., Reynolds, P. *A Pictorial Guide to Identifying Australian Architecture. Styles and Terms from 1788 to the Present*, Angus and Robertson, North Ryde, 2002.

**REVIEW 2018** 



Condition refers to the current state of the place in relation to each of the values for which the place has been assessed. Condition reflects the cumulative effects of management and environmental effects.

Integrity is a measure of the likely long-term viability or sustainability of the values identified, or the ability of the place to restore itself or be restored, and the time frame for any restorative process.

Authenticity refers to the extent to which the fabric is in its original state.



## 5.0 Levels of significance

**REVIEW 2018** 

For each place deemed to be of heritage value, a level of significance and consequent grading is applied.

The following table is extracted from the State Heritage Office's *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas* (Appendix 2 p.22). It is amended to illustrate the draft proposed gradings listed against them with respect to the Shire of Goomalling's 2018 review.

Each place assessed was graded on the basis of the following levels of significance:

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE	DESCRIPTION	DESIRED OUTCOME
A Exceptional significance	Essential to the heritage of the locality. Rare or outstanding example.	The place should be retained and conserved. Any alterations or extensions should reinforce the significance of the place, and be in accordance with a Conservation Plan (if one exists for the place).
<b>B</b> + Considerable significance	Very important to the heritage of the locality. High degree of integrity/ authenticity.	Conservation of the place is highly desirable. Any alterations or extensions should reinforce the significance of the place.
<b>B</b> - Considerable significance	Very important to the heritage of the locality. High degree of integrity/ authenticity.	Conservation of the place is highly desirable. Any alterations or extensions should reinforce the significance of the place.
C Some/Moderate significance	Contributes to the heritage of the locality. Has some altered or modified elements, not necessarily detracting from the overall significance of the item.	Conservation of the place is desirable. Any alterations or extensions should reinforce the significance of the place, and original fabric should be retained wherever feasible. Interpret the site, ruin or archaeological remnants



**REVIEW 2018** 

## 6.0 Places

The Heritage Inventory Review 2018 reference numbers have been amended from the 1997 inventory. The 1997 reference numbers are included on each place record.

The Heritage Inventory Review 2018 is renumbered and in alphabetical order of street names in town, and then the broader shire area.

No.	1997 No.		
1	-	W.Bottle's residence (fmr)	7 Forrest Street
2	-	W.Bottle's Shop (fmr)	9 Forrest Street
3	-	Wilkin's Dining Room & Hostel (fmr)	12 Forrest Street
4	2	Goomalling District Hospital	Forrest Street
5	-	St John Ambulance	61 Forrest Street
6	-	CWA original & Flour Mill SITE	6 Forward Street
7	-	Goomalling Convent SITE	Forward Street
8	-	Sacred Heart Catholic School	20 Hoddy Street
9	-	Goomalling District High School	65 Hoddy Street (R29843)
10	-	Cordial factory SITE	1 Lockyer Street
11	-	Original hospital SITE	12 Lockyer Street
12	-	Recreation reserve	47 Lockyer Street (R9069)
13	-	Army Ordnance SITE	Quinlan Street (east end)
14	-	Police Station, Courthouse & lock-up	14 Quinlan Street
15	4	Goomalling Farmers Club	23 Quinlan Street cnr Forrest
16	-	Uniting Church	17 Quinlan Street (R10759)
17	-	Catholic Presbytery	35 Quinlan Street
18	-	Sacred Heart Catholic Church	37 Quinlan Street cnr Hoddy (R10585)
19	-	Goomalling Shire Office	32 Quinlan Street cnr Hoddy
20	6	Goomalling War Memorial Hall	34 Quinlan Street cnr Hoddy
21	5	Senior Citizens Hall (fmr Masonic Lodge)	17 Lockyer Street cnr Quinlan
22	-	Railway turntable SITE	Railway Tce; Main, Throssell St
23	-	Wigmores (fmr)	1 Railway Terrace cnr Throssell
24	-	Goomalling Gazette building (fmr)	9 Railway Terrace
25	-	Eaton's Café & grocery (fmr)	11 Railway Terrace
26	-	Eaton's Garage (fmr)	13 Railway Terrace
27	-	Kingston's Grocery Store (fmr)	17 Railway Terrace

## **REVIEW 2018**



28	-	RB Motors	25 Railway Terrace
29	-	Butcher's (fmr)	29 Railway Terrace
30	10	Bank of NSW (fmr)	33 Railway Terrace cnr Forrest
31	-	Goomalling Co-op (fmr)	37-39 Railway Terrace
		Munyard and Kenworthy Store	37 Railway Terrace
		Miss O'Brien's Dining Room	39A Railway Terrace
		Plaisted Newsagency & Green Grocer	39B Railway Terrace
32	8	Union Bank and Quarters (fmr)	41 Railway Terrace
33		CWA, Infant Health Clinic & Anstey Park	43 Railway Terrace (R8800)
34	7	Goomalling Post Office	47 Railway Terrace
35	1	Goomalling Railway Station	Railway Terrace
		Refreshment room (fmr)	
		Railway weighbridge & shed	opposite station
		Railway tank SITE	Railway Terrace
36	-	Royals Store (fmr) SITE	51-53 Railway Terrace
37		R & I Bank (fmr) (Westralia Bank & Greenga	te Café) 55 Railway Terrace
38	9	National Bank (fmr)	59 Railway Terrace cnr Hoddy
39	3	Goomalling Tavern (Hotel)	63 Railway Terrace
40	-	Billiard hall SITE	67 Railway Terrace
41	-	Bakery (fmr)	71 Railway Terrace
42	-	Auto electrician	2 Throssell Street
43	-	St Paul's Anglican Church	7 Throssell Street (R9387)
44	11	Headmaster's residence (fmr) Goomalling H	listorical Society
		Goomalling state school SITE 1906-1955	22-46 Throssell St (R24743 & R8918)
45	12	Konnongorring School (fmr) Goomalling Mu	seum 20 Throssell Street (R34207)
46	-	War Memorial Swimming pool	22 Throssell Street (R24743)
47	-	Old Native (Aboriginal) Reserve SITE	Goomalling-Calingiri Road
48	-	Goomalling State School SITE 1955-1973	16 Williams Street (R8918)
49	-	CBH Wheat bins	Railway Terrace (SW) (R38174)
50	-	Chatham's Farm & Graves	Eaton Street
51	20	Pear Tree Well SITE	Pear Tree Drive
52	-	Quarry	Pear Tree Drive
53	-	Goomalling Cemetery	Cemetery Road



**REVIEW 2018** 

54		Ruel's boarding house (fmr) SITE	32 Quinlan Street
55	-	Sunlight Hospital SITE	Northam-Pithara Road (SE townsite)

## **REVIEW 2018**

S22

Wells



Northea:	st Goomalling	1	
S1	19	Slater Homestead	62 Goomalling-Wyalkatchem Road
Silver Hi	<u>lls</u>		
S2		Goomalling Agricultural Hall SITE	
<u>Jennacu</u>	<u>bbine</u>		
S3	13	Jennacubbine Hall	Jennacubbine-East Road
S4	14	Jennacubbine Tavern	22 Collins Street
S5	15	St Isidore's Catholic Church	6 Bebakine Road
S6	-	Jennacubbine CWA	22 Tyndall Road
S7	-	Jennacubbine War Memorial	
S8	-	Jennacubbine Water tank stand	
<u>Jurakine</u>	<u>.</u>		
S9	-	Jurokine Coach House (fmr)	Toodyay-Goomalling Road
Mumber	<u>kine</u>		
S10	18	Mumberkine Hall	2671 Toodyay-Goomalling Road
S11	-	Mumberkine homestead ruins	
<u>Wongan</u>	<u>nine</u>		
S12	-	Wongamine Hall ruins	Hughes Road
S13	-	Patricia Homestead	
Botherlin	<u>ng</u>		
S14	-	Botherling	Northam- Pithara Road
Konnong	gorring		
S15	16	Konnongorring Hall	7122 Northam- Pithara Road
S16	17	St Michael the Archangel Church (Catholic)	Northam- Pithara Road
S17	-	Anglican and Uniting Church	Northam- Pithara Road
S18	-	Konnongorring Well	7122 Northam- Pithara Road
Walyorm	nouring		
S19	21	Oak Park and Walyormouring Lake SITE Oak Park Hall SITE Walyormouring Cricket pitch SITE Walyormouring School SITE	Oak Park Road
Shire are	ea		
S20	_	School sites	
S21	-	Railway sidings	
		, ,	





#### 7.0 Grades

Further to State Heritage Office's *Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas* (Appendix 1), an important part of the recognition and understanding of cultural heritage significance of a place, is that some guidance is provided to the owners, managers and statutory authority, to respond to that assessed significance.

Grades have been determined relevant to the assessed level of significance for each place. Implications for each recommendation are also summarised.

**Grade A** A place of exceptional cultural heritage significance to Shire of Goomalling and the state of Western Australia, that is either in the Heritage Council of Western Australia's <u>Register of Heritage Places</u>, or worthy of consideration.

A place worthy of recognition and protection through provisions of the Shire of Goomalling's Town Planning Scheme.

Planning application needs to be submitted to Shire of Goomalling for any proposed development.

The development application needs to be submitted to State Heritage Office (SHO) for approval for any proposed development.

**Recommend:** Maximum encouragement to owners to retain and conserve the place. Full consultation with property owner prior to making the recommendation.

#### IMPLICATIONS of REGISTRATION:

A Memorial is lodged on the Certificate of Title of the Registered place under the provisions of the *Heritage Act (1990)*.

By virtue of the Heritage Act (1990), the owner is bound to conserve the place.

ALL development (including demolition) MUST be referred to State Heritage Office for consideration PRIOR to undertaking any works.

The Shire of Goomalling cannot approve anything contrary to State Heritage Office recommendations.

Private owners of Registered places qualify for the annual State Heritage Office's Heritage Grants Program funding. A Conservation Management Plan or Conservation Management Strategy is a pre-requisite for conservation works funding assistance from the State Heritage Office.

Local Government, churches and community (not-for-profit) owners qualify for Lotterywest conservation funding. It is funded loosely on a \$ for \$ basis, although 'inkind'





contributions are encouraged. Benefit to the community is a significant factor in assessment for funding. A Conservation Management Plan or Conservation Management Strategy is a pre-requisite for conservation works funding, and can also be funded.

Local Government owned Registered places qualify to claim for \$10,000 per annum 'Disability allowance' through the Grants Commission. Up to a maximum of \$50,000 is allowed for 5 buildings or more.

**Grade B+** A place of considerable cultural heritage significance to Shire of Goomalling that is worthy of recognition and protection through provisions of the Shire of Goomalling's Town Planning Scheme.

The Goomalling Shire Council prefer that only Shire owned Grade B places be included in the Heritage List.

Planning application needs to be submitted to Shire of Goomalling for any proposed development.

**Recommend:** Retain and conserve the place. Undertake photo record of the place prior to any development.

#### **IMPLICATIONS:**

Planning applications must be submitted to Shire of Goomalling for approval prior to undertaking any works.

Local Government, churches and community (not-for-profit) owners qualify for Lotterywest conservation funding. It is funded loosely on a \$ for \$ basis, although 'inkind' contributions are encouraged. Benefit to the community is a significant factor in assessment for funding. A Conservation Management Plan or Conservation Management Strategy is usually a pre-requisite for conservation works funding, and may also be funded on same basis as works funding assistance.

**Grade B-** A place of considerable cultural heritage significance to Shire of Goomalling that is worthy of recognition and protection through provisions of the Shire of Goomalling's Town Planning Scheme.

However, the Goomalling Shire Council prefer not to include privately owned Grade B places in the Heritage List and therefore not included in the provisions of the Town Planning Scheme or any level of protection or management.

**Recommend:** Retain and conserve the place. Undertake photo record of the place prior to any development.





#### IMPLICATIONS:

If a planning application is submitted to the Shire of Goomalling for approval, if approved a condition of development should require documentation and a photographic record of the place prior to any development or if retention is not possible.

There are no statutory requirements pertaining to heritage issues.

Private owners do not qualify for any funding.

Local Government, churches and community (not-for-profit) owners qualify for Lotterywest conservation funding. It is funded loosely on a \$ for \$ basis, although 'inkind' contributions are encouraged. Benefit to the community is a significant factor in assessment for funding. A Conservation Management Plan or Conservation Management Strategy is usually a pre-requisite for conservation works funding, and may also be funded on same basis as works funding assistance.

**Grade C** A place (including a site with no built remains) of some cultural heritage significance to Shire of Goomalling.

No constraints.

**Recommend:** Encourage retention of the place, or where there are ruins, archaeological findings or no built remains: Interpret the place.

#### **IMPLICATIONS:**

If a planning application is submitted to the Shire of Goomalling for approval, if approved a condition of development should require documentation and a photographic record of the place prior to any development or if retention is not possible.

There are no statutory requirements pertaining to heritage issues.

Private owners do not qualify for any funding.

Local Government, churches and community (not-for-profit) owners qualify for Lotterywest conservation funding, although at a lower priority. It is funded loosely on a \$ for \$ basis, although 'inkind' contributions are encouraged. Benefit to the community is a significant factor in assessment for funding. A Conservation Management Plan or Conservation Management Strategy is usually a pre-requisite for conservation works funding, and may also be funded on same basis as works funding assistance.



## 8.0 Heritage List

**REVIEW 2018** 

The Heritage Inventory Review 2018 proposes the 2 Grade A and Grade B+ places form the Shire of Goomalling Heritage List.

The Heritage List comprises the places of the highest levels of heritage significance to the Shire of Goomalling. Assessed against the *Criteria for assessing local heritage places and areas*, it identifies Grade A places as those of State significance, recognised by into the Register of Heritage Places (Heritage Council of Western Australia).

Although Grade B places are assessed as having a high level of significance to the Shire of Goomalling, the Shire Council has directed that they not be included in the Heritage List.

Grade A places that form the Heritage List are primarily subject of the State Heritage Office provisions by virtue of their inclusion in the Register of Heritage Places, and although subject to the provisions of the Town Planning Scheme, the Shire of Goomalling cannot act contrary to the State Heritage Office determination for any development proposal.

All other places to be included in the Heritage Inventory (Grades B and C) have no statutory implications.

No. Place name				GRADE A
3	34	7	Goomalling Post Office	A (Registered)
5	S1	19	Slater Homestead	A (Registered)
No.	Place na	ame		GRADE B+
2	20	6	Goomalling War Memorial Hall	
3	31	-	Goomalling Co-op (fmr)	
3	35	1	Goomalling Railway Station group Refreshment room (fmr) Railway weighbridge & shed Railway tank SITE	
3	38	9	National Bank (fmr)	
4	14	11	Headmaster's residence (fmr) [Goomalling S	School SITE 1906-1955]
4	45	12	Konnongorring School (fmr)	
5	S3	13	Jennacubbine Hall	
5	S5	15	St Isidore's Catholic Church	
5	S6	-	Jennacubbine CWA	
5	S7	-	Jennacubbine War Memorial	
5	S10	18	Mumberkine Hall	



**REVIEW 2018** 

## 9.0 Grade B- Places

Grade B places have a high level of significance but have no implications other than encouragement to retain and conserve, and the opportunity to record the place prior to development or demise, and recognition of their cultural heritage significance.

No.	1997 No.	Place name
2	-	W. Bottle's Shop (fmr)
3	-	Wilkin's Dining Room & Hostel (fmr)
15	4	Goomalling Farmers Club
21	5	Senior Citizens Hall (fmr Masonic Lodge)
24	-	Goomalling Gazette building (fmr)
25	-	Eaton's Café & grocery (fmr)
26	-	Eaton's Garage (fmr)
27	-	Kingston's Grocery Store (fmr)
29	-	Butcher's (fmr)
30	10	Bank of NSW (fmr)
32	8	Union Bank and Quarters (fmr)
33		CWA, Infant Health Clinic & Anstey Park
36	-	Royals Store (fmr) SITE
37	-	R & I Bank
39	3	Goomalling Tavern (Hotel)
41	-	Bakery (fmr)
S2		Goomalling Agricultural Hall SITE Silver Hills
S4	14	Jennacubbine Tavern
S8	-	Jennacubbine Water tank stand



**REVIEW 2018** 

## 10.0 Grade C Places

Grade C places have no implications other than the opportunity to record the place prior to development or demise, and recognition of their cultural heritage significance. Many of the "places" are sites of a place or activity that is worthy of recognition.

No.	1997 No.	Place name
1	-	W. Bottle's residence (fmr)
4	2	Goomalling District Hospital
5	-	St John Ambulance
6	-	CWA original & Flour Mill SITE
7	-	Goomalling Convent SITE
8	-	Sacred Heart Catholic School
9	-	Goomalling District High School
10	-	Cordial factory SITE
11	-	Original hospital SITE
12	-	Recreation reserve
13	-	Army Ordnance SITE
14	-	Police Station, Courthouse & lock-up
16	-	Uniting Church
17	-	Catholic Presbytery
18	-	Sacred Heart Catholic Church
19	-	Goomalling Shire Office
22	-	Railway turntable SITE
23	-	Wigmores (fmr)
28	-	RB Motors
40	-	Billiard hall SITE
42	-	Auto electrician
43	-	St Paul's Anglican Church
46	-	War Memorial Swimming Pool
47	-	Old Native (Aboriginal) Reserve SITE
48	-	Goomalling school SITE 1955-1973

## **REVIEW 2018**



49	-	CBH Wheat bins
50	-	Chatham's Farm & Graves
51	20	Pear Tree Well SITE
52	-	Quarry
53	-	Goomalling Cemetery
54		Ruel's boarding house (fmr) SITE
55	-	Sunlight Hospital SITE
S9	-	Jurokine Coach House
S11	-	Mumberkine homestead ruins
S12	-	Wongamine Hall ruins
S13	-	Patricia Homestead, Wongamine
S14	-	Botherling
S15	16	Konnongorring Hall
S16	17	St Michael the Archangel Church (Catholic)
S17	-	Anglican and Uniting Church
S18	-	Konnongorring Well
S19	21	Oak Park and Walymouring Lake SITE
		Oak Park Hall SITE
		Walymouring Cricket pitch SITE
		Walymouring School SITE
S20	-	School sites
S21	-	Railway Sidings
S22	-	Wells





#### 11.0 Aboriginal Heritage

The Heritage Inventory under the requirements of the Heritage Act (1990) is relevant to places of Aboriginal significance of the post-contact period only.

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) oversees an "Aboriginal Sites Database" and works with Aboriginal people to protect their culture ant to protect and manage places and objects of significance to Aboriginal heritage.

#### 12.0 Conclusion

The 2018 review of the Shire of Goomalling's Heritage Inventory further reiterates the considerable significance of the rich heritage and history of the Goomalling town and region, and provides strategic guidance to conserve those places of assessed as having a high level of cultural significance, on the Heritage List.

#### 13.0 References

Sewell, B. Goomalling-A Backward Glance-A History of the District. Shire of Goomalling 1998.

Shire of Goomalling DRAFT Municipal Inventory of Heritage Places 1996.

Municipal Inventory of Heritage Places & Locations 1994. Ian Elliot- Heritage Council of WA

State Heritage Office: assessment documentation.

State Heritage Office: Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas.

## 14.0 Appendices

The Shire of Goomalling 2018
 HERITAGE INVENTORY
 Place Records

2. Criteria for the assessment of local heritage places and areas